[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY oF H . j .
WOLVERHAMPTON Licensing Sub-Committee
COUNCIL 18 July 2018

Time 10.00 am Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Regulatory

Venue Committee Room 5, Ground Floor, Civic Centre

Membership

Chair Clir Alan Bolshaw (Lab)

Labour Conservative

Clir Rita Potter Clir Wendy Thompson

Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Donna Cope, Democratic Services Officer
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 554452 Email: donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’'s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website www.wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk1
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming and recording of, and use of social media in, meetings, copies
of which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.


http://www.wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk1/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
2 Declarations of interest
3 Review of the Licence Conditions for Oxley Court Mobile Home Caravan Site

(Pages 3 - 50)

4 Exclusion of press and public
To pass the following resolution:
That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 1
of Schedule 12A to the Act relating to any individual.

5 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Drivers Licence (AR) (Pages 51 - 58)
6 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (AH) (Pages 59 - 68)
7 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (SL) (Pages 69 - 76)

Agenda



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

CITY or : : - :
woLvirnaveron | Eicensing Sub-Committee
COUNCIL 18 July 2018
Report title Review of the Licence Conditions for Oxley Court mobile
home caravan site.
Wards affected Oxley

Accountable director
Originating service

Accountable employee

Ross Cook, Service Director - City Environment, Place

Business Services

Phillip Richards District Officer — Public Protection
Tel 01902 554330
Email Phil.Richards@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation(s) for decision:

The Licensing Sub-Committee is recommended to:

1. Approve the applying of Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England, Licence
conditions to Oxley Court, Oxley, Wolverhampton.

Page 3



mailto:Phil.Richards@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

this report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

To update committee of a consultation exercise undertaken to review the current model
Licence conditions applicable to Oxley court mobile home sites and obtain approval to
apply the Model Standards 2008 conditions to the existing Licence.

Background

The Oxley Court caravan site was licensed under Caravan Sites and Control of
Development Act 1960 legislation in Wolverhampton. The Licence conditions were based
on the Model Standards 1989: Permanent Residential Mobile Homes Sites.

It is proposed to bring those conditions up to date, implementing the Model Standards
2008 for Caravan Sites in England, which are the current ‘standard’. The model
standards represent those standards normally to be expected as a matter of good
practice on caravan sites.

A certificate of lawfulness was granted by planning on 10 May 2017 for the site to be used
as a caravan park. Appendix 1. The certificate contained a site plan, which is not attached
to the current Licence and conditions and will be attached to the new Licence. Appendix 2

The local authority was requested by a Resident’s Association to consider applying the
conditions laid out in the 2008 model standards, Appendix 3.

There has been complaints from residents over the years concerning the running of the
site, changes being made ad-hoc to the site, including additional units.

Due to the circumstances above, the local authority, determined it appropriate to apply the
new standards on the site for there to be a firm basis of Licence conditions going forward.

Consultation

A review was undertaken, Appendix 4 shows the previous conditions and lays out the
proposed conditions.

The review was sent out for consultation with the present licence holders and the
Resident’s Association. A period of 28 days was given for representations to be received.

Summaries of the response received were given consideration and are shown together
with the Councils response in the table below.

Page 4



Residents Representations Local Authority Response

Boundaries

There should be a minimum height for the site
boundaries, due to the fact that one runs along
a canal. (This was incorporated in the previous
licence at 2 meters)

Boundaries

As you stated the 2 metre minimum height for
boundaries was included within the previous
license we concede this and will include the
condition in the new license.

To Read — no “newly sited” sited caravans or
combustable features shall be positioned within
3 meters of the boundary of the site.

We are objecting to —“provided that on receipt
of a written request from the licence holder, the
Director at their discretion grant exemption
from or vary this condition as seen fit”.

We would like is this removed due to it being an
implication that one new pad, could be used in
this instance on an exemption grant.

We do not feel that applying this new variation
of the condition is justified with regard to this
site.

We have considered your request to delete the
ability for the Director to apply variations to this
condition after receiving a written request from
the license holder. We believe this should be
included in the conditions, as other variations
have been allowed in the past, and the Director
should still have this option available to
him/her.

Communal Recreational Space

There should be adequate recreational space
provide for the residents of the caravan park.

Communal Recreational Space

“On sites where it is practical to do so, suitable
space equivalent to about one tenth of the total
area of the site shall be allocated for
recreational purposes, unless in the local
authority’s opinion there are adequate
recreational facilities within a close proximity to
the site.”

It is the opinion of the Local Authority that there
is sufficient and suitable space available off
site within close (walking) distance of the
caravan park. The space is freely accessible
by the public, it includes green open spaces
and parts of the countryside to which the public
have a right to walk.

Appendix 3 show the green open spaces to
the north of the park and the canal (which has
ramped access for disabled persons) to the
east of the park

Page 5




3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0
9.1

10.0

10.1

A further 14 days was given for comment on the local authority’s response to the resident’s
representations. No further comments were received during this 14-day period.

Financial implications

There are no direct financial implications associated with the recommendations in this
report. [SR/10072018/W]

Legal implications

Section 3 of the Caravan Sites and Development Act 1960 provides that a local authority
may issue a site licence if an applicant is entitled to the benefit of a permission for the
use of the land as a caravan site granted under the 1947 planning legislation.

Section 8 of the 1960 Act provides that conditions attached to a site licence may be
altered at any time, whether by variation or cancellation of existing conditions, by the
addition of new conditions or by a combination of both. However, before exercising these
powers the local authority shall afford the holder of the licence an opportunity to make
representations.

Section 8 further provides that where the holder of a site licence is aggrieved by the
alteration of conditions (which should be necessary and desirable in the interests of other
persons) he may within 28 days appeal to the Magistrates Court.

The power to issue licences authorising the use of land as a caravan site under the 1960
Act is delegated to Licensing Committee within the Wolverhampton City Council
Constitution. Caravan Sites Alteration of Conditions is further delegated to a Licensing

Officer where there are no representations and delegated to the Licensing Sub-
Committee where there are representations. [SH/05072018/Q]

Equalities implications

Initial equality analysis has been carried out and determined that a full equality analysis is
not required.

Environmental implications

There are no Environmental implications associated with this report.
Human resources implications

There are no Human resources implications associated with this report.

Corporate landlord implications

There are no Corporate landlord implications associated with this report.
Schedule of background papers

None

Page 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON Application No. 17/00359/CPL  Page 1 of 2

COUNCIL

Date Received. 29th March 2017

Appendix 1

CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON GOUNCIL

Town and Country Planning Act 1990: Section 192

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order

2015

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL USE OR DEVELOPMENT

Agent Applicant
Mr Ben Eiser C Nedic
EJ Planning Ltd. Sovereign Parks
EJ Planning Ltd PO Box 310 c/o agent
Malvern
WR14 9FF
United Kingdom
Our Ref: | 17/00359/CPL
Site: Former Goodyear Pumping Station
Oxley Moor Road
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
Proposal: | Use of the land for up to twenty-eight caravans for the purposes of human
habitation

The City of Wolverhampton Council herby certify that on, 25 April 2017, the use described
in respect of the land specified and shown edged by a solid red line on the plan attached
to this Certificate would have been lawful within the meaning of Section 192 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), for the following reason(s):-

1. The use of the site as a caravan park has been carried on for a period exceeding
ten years without planning permission.

2. The use is immune from enforcement action under the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990,

NOTES

1. This Certificate is issued solely for the purpose of Section 192 of the Town &
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Civic Centre

St Peter's Square

Wolverhampton
Wv1 1RP

Telephone 01902 551357

Authorised Officer:
Date.: 10t May 201

iMrs Charlotte Morrison



envh394
Text Box
Appendix 1


envh394_1
Rectangle


CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON Application No. 17/00359/CPL  Page 2 of 2

Date Received. 29th March 2017
COUNCIL

2. It certifies that the operations specified taking place on the land described would
have been lawful, on the specified date and, thus, would not have been liable to
enforcement action under Section 172 of the 1990 Act on that date.

& This Certificate applies only to the extent of the operations described and to the
land identified on the attached plan. Any operations which is materially different
from that described or which relate to other land may render the owner or occupier
liable to enforcement action.

4. The effect of the Certificate is also qualified by the proviso in Section 192(4) of the
1990 Act (as amended) which states that the lawfulness of a described operation is
only conclusively presumed where there has been no material change, before the
operation begun, in any of the matters relevant to determining such lawfulness.

In dealing with the application, the local planning authority has worked with the applicant in
a positive and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation
to dealing with the planning application, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

Civic Centre

St Peter's Square
Wolverhampton

Wwv1 1RP

Telephone 01902 551357

»
Authorised Officer: Mrs Charlotte Morrison

Date.: 10t May 2017


envh394_2
Rectangle


Appendix 2

301700m 301700m
Oxley Court
(Caravan Park)
H
<
H
16 fo
104 5m
: C
1
| ]
1
1
1
]
: |
1
1
301 500m &: { 301 500m
=) =)
N @
8 g
3 3
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50
| I N I Y I |
m
Oxley Court Park Oxley
Moore Road Wolverhampton
WV10 6TZ OS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale ~ =R 1T =
15 March 2017, ID: CM-00607877 A '

- | [ X
www.centremapslive.co.uk |

1:1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 390295 E, 301616 N 1\

©Crown Copyright and database rightsBﬁQﬁ 1 1

100019980



envh394_3
Text Box
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Dd
$ Communities
®ee®

and Local Government

Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 — Section 5

www.communities.gov.uk
community, opportunity, prosperity



http://www.communities.gov.uk/

: Communities
@ and Local Government
Y L

Communities and Local Government
Eland House

Bressenden Place

London

SW1E 5DU

Telephone: 020 7944 4400

Website: www.communities.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright, 2008
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for research, private study
or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not

used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the

publication specified.

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for a Click-Use Licence
for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp, or by writing to the Office of

Public Sector Information, Information Policy Team, St Clements House, 2-16 Colegate, Norwich, NR3 1BQ.

Fax: 01603 723000 or email: HMSOlicensing@opsi.x.gsi.gov.uk

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Communities and Local Government Publications

PO Box 236

Wetherby

West Yorkshire

LS23 7NB

Tel: 08701 226 236

Fax: 08701 226 237

Textphone: 08701 207 405

Email: communities@capita.co.uk

or online via the Communities and Local Government website: www.communities.gov.uk

7 5% recycled

This is printed on
75% recycled paper

April 2008

Product Code: 08 LPH 05217

ISBN: 978 1 8511 29089 Page 14



Introduction | 3

Introduction

1. Under section 5(6) of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 (the
Act) the Secretary of State may from time to time specify model standards with
respect to the lay-out and the provision of facilities, services and equipment for
caravan sites or particular types of caravan site; and that, in deciding what (if any)
conditions to attach to a site licence, the local authority shall have regard to any
standards so specified.

2. These standards only apply to those sites which contain caravans that are used as
permanent residential units. They do not apply to sites used exclusively for holidays
or touring caravan sites (for which separate model standards have been issued). The
standards also do not apply to sites occupied by gypsies or travellers or caravan
sites which house agricultural workers.

3. These standards should be considered when applying licence conditions to new
sites and sites that have been substantially redeveloped. In considering variations to
existing site licences or applications for new site licences for existing sites local
authorities should consider whether it is appropriate for these standards to apply.
In relation to variation of a licence the local authority must consult the site licence
holder on its proposed variations and may wish to consult with residents or a
Residents’ Association, where appropriate. Where a current licence condition is
adequate in serving its purpose, the authority should not normally apply the new
standard. Where it is appropriate to apply the new standard to a condition the local
authority should be able to justify its reasons for doing so, having regard to all the
relevant circumstances of the site. In deciding whether to apply a new standard the
local authority must have regard to the benefit that the standard will achieve and
the interests of both residents and site owners (including the cost of complying with
the new or altered condition).

4. The model standards represent those standards normally to be expected as a
matter of good practice on caravan sites. They should be applied with due regard to
the particular circumstances of the relevant site, including its physical character,
any relevant services, facilities or other amenities that are available within or in the
locality of the site and other applicable conditions.

5. The annex to this document provides advice on the application and enforcement of
the model standards when considering attaching conditions to licences.

Page 15



4 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England
6. In the model standards any references to “site” includes a park home site (including
a mobile home site) and to “caravan” includes a mobile or park home.

7. This document should be referred to as Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in
England.

Previous Standards
8. The 2008 Standards replace the document “Model Standards 1989: Permanent
Residential Mobile Homes Sites”. When issuing any new licences or reviewing

current ones the local authority must have regard to the 2008 Standards in setting
or varying any of the conditions attached.

Page 16



The Standards | 5

THE STANDARDS

1. The Boundaries and Plan of the Site

(i) The boundaries of the site from any adjoining land shall be clearly marked by a man
made or natural feature.

(ii)  No caravan or combustible structure shall be positioned within 3 metres of the
boundary of the site.

(iii) (a) A plan of the site shall be supplied to the local authority upon the application for
a licence and, thereafter whenever there is a material change to the boundaries
or layout of the site, or at any other time on the demand of the local authority.

(b) The plan supplied must clearly illustrate the layout of the site including all
relevant structures, features and facilities on it and shall be of suitable quality.

2. Density, Spacing and Parking Between Caravans

(i) Exceptin the case mentioned in sub paragraph (iii) and subject to sub paragraph (iv),
every caravan must where practicable be spaced at a distance of no less than 6
metres (the separation distance) from any other caravan which is occupied as a
separate residence.

(ii)  No caravan shall be stationed within 2 metres of any road or communal car park
within the site or more than 50 metres from such a road within the site.

(iii) Where a caravan has retrospectively been fitted with cladding from Class 1 fire rated
materials to its facing walls, then the separation distance between it and an adjacent
caravan may be reduced to a minimum of 5.25 metres.

(iv) Inany case mentioned in subparagraph (i) or (iii):

(a) A porch attached to the caravan may protrude one metre into the separation
distance and must not exceed 2 metres in length and 1 metre in depth. The
porch must not exceed the height of the caravan. Where a porch is installed only
one door may be permitted at that entrance to the home, either on the porch or
on the home.

Page 17



6 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

(v)

(b) Eaves, drainpipes and bay windows may extend into the separation distance
provided the total distance between the extremities of two facing caravans is
not less than 5 metres, except where sub paragraph (iii) applies in which case
the extension into the separation distance shall not exceed 4.25 metres.

(c) Any structure including steps, ramps, etc (except a garage or car port), which
extends more than 1 metre into the separation distance shall be of non-
combustible construction. There should be a 4.5 metre clear distance between
any such structure and any adjacent caravan.

(d) A garage or car port may only be permitted within the separation distance if it is
of non-combustible construction.

(e) Windows in structures within the separation distance shall not face towards the
caravan on either side.

(f) Fences and hedges, where allowed and forming the boundary between adjacent
caravans, should be a maximum of 1 metre high.

(g) Private cars may be parked within the separation distance provided that they do
not obstruct entrances to caravans or access around them and they are a
minimum of 3 metres from an adjacent caravan.

The density of caravans on a site shall be determined in accordance with relevant
health and safety standards and fire risk assessments.

3. Roads, Gateways and Overhead Cables

(i)

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

Roads shall be designed to provide adequate access for emergency vehicles and
routes within the site for such vehicles must be kept clear of obstruction at all times.

New roads shall be constructed and laid of suitable bitumen macadem or concrete
with a suitable compacted base.

All roads shall have adequate surface water/storm drainage.

New two way roads shall not be less than 3.7 metres wide, or if they are designed for
and used by one way traffic, not less than 3 metres wide.

One-way systems shall be clearly signposted.

Where existing two way roads are not 3.7 metres wide, passing places shall be
provided where practical.

Vehicular access and all gateways to the site must be a minimum of 3.1 metres wide
and have a minimum height clearance of 3.7 metres.

Page 18



The Standards | 7

(viii) Roads shall be maintained in a good condition.

(ix) Cable overhangs must meet the statutory requirements.

4. Footpaths and Pavements

(i)  Every caravan shall be connected to a road by a footpath with a hard surface which
shall be maintained in good condition.

(ii)  Where practicable, communal footpaths and pavements shall not be less than 0.9
metres wide.

5. Lighting

Roads, communal footpaths and pavements shall be adequately lit between dusk and

dawn to allow the safe movement of pedestrians and vehicles around the site during the

hours of darkness.

6. Bases

(i)  Every unit must stand on a concrete base or hard-standing.

(ii) The base must extend over the whole area occupied by the unit, and must project a
sufficient distance outwards from its entrance or entrances to enable occupants to
enter and leave safely. The hard standings must be constructed to the industry
guidance, current at the time of siting, taking into account local conditions.

7. Maintenance of Common Areas, including Grass, Vegetation and Trees

(i)  Every part of the site to which the public have access shall be kept in a clean and tidy
condition.

(ii) Everyroad, communal footpath and pavement on the site shall be maintained in a
good condition, good repair and clear of rubbish.

(iii) Grass and vegetation shall be cut and removed at frequent and regular intervals.
(iv) Trees within the site shall (subject to the necessary consents) be maintained.

(v)  Any cuttings, litter or waste shall be removed from the immediate surrounds of a
pitch.

Page 19



8 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

8. Supply & Storage of Gas etc

(i)

(ii)

Gas (including natural gas) and oil installations, and the storage of supplies shall
meet current statutory requirements, relevant Standards and Codes of Practice.

Liquefied Petroleum Gas cylinders must not be positioned or secured in such a way
as to impede access or removal in the event of an emergency.

9. Electrical Installations

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

On the site there shall be installed an electricity network of adequate capacity to
meet safely all reasonable demands of the caravans and other facilities and services
within it.

The electrical network installations shall be subject to regulation under current
relevant legislation and must be designed, installed, tested, inspected and
maintained in accordance with the provisions of the current relevant statutory
requirements.

Any work on electrical installations and appliances shall be carried out only by
persons who are competent to do the particular type of work being undertaken, in
accordance with current relevant statutory requirements.

Any work on the electrical network within the site shall be done by a competent
person fully conversant with the appropriate statutory requirements.

10. Water Supply

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

All pitches on the site shall be provided with a water supply sufficient in all respects
to meet all reasonable demands of the caravans situated on them.

All new water supplies shall be in accordance with all current legislation, regulations
and relevant British or European Standards.

All repairs and improvements to water supplies and installations shall be carried out
to conform with current legislation and British or European Standards.

Work on water supplies and installations shall be carried out only by persons who are
qualified in the particular type of work being undertaken and in accordance with
current relevant legislation and British or European Standards.

Page 20



The Standards |

11. Drainage and Sanitation

(i)  Surface water drainage shall be provided where appropriate to avoid standing pools
of water.

(ii) There shall be satisfactory provision for foul and waste water drainage either by
connection to a public sewer or sewage treatment works or by discharge to a
properly constructed septic tank or cesspool approved by the local authority.

(iii) All drainage and sanitation provision shall be in accordance with all current
legislation and British or European Standards.

(iv) Work on drains and sewers shall be carried out only by persons who are qualified in
the particular type of work being undertaken and in accordance with current
legislation and British or European standards.

12. Domestic Refuse Storage & Disposal

(i)  Where communal refuse bins are provided these shall be non-combustible and
housed within a properly constructed bin store.

(i)  All refuse disposal shall be in accordance with all current legislation and regulations.

13. Communal Vehicular Parking

Suitably surfaced parking spaces shall be provided to meet the requirements of residents
and their visitors.

14. Communal Recreation Space

On sites where it is practical to do so, suitable space equivalent to about one tenth of the
total area of the site shall be allocated for recreational purposes, unless in the local
authority’s opinion there are adequate recreational facilities within a close proximity to
the site.

15. Notices and Information

(i) The name of the site shall be displayed on a sign in a prominent position at the
entrances to the site together with the current name, address and telephone
number of the licence holder and manager and emergency contact details, a copy of
the site licence or the front page of the said licence and details of where the full
licence and other information required to be available under this standard can be
viewed and between which times (if not displayed on the notice board).

Page 21

9



10 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

(ii) A current plan of the site with roads and pitches marked on it shall be prominently
displayed at the entrances to it.

(iii) A copy of the current site licence shall be available for inspection in a prominent
place on the site.

(iv) In addition at the prominent place the following information shall also be available
for inspection at the prominent place:

(a) A copy of the most recent periodic electrical inspection report.
(b) A copy of the site owner’s certificate of public liability insurance.

(c) A copy of the local flood warning system and evacuation procedures, if
appropriate.

(d) A copy of the fire risk assessment made for the site.

(v)  All notices shall be suitably protected from the weather and from direct sunlight.

16. Flooding

(i) The site owner shall establish whether the site is at risk from flooding by referring to
the Environment Agency’s Flood Map.

(ii)  Where there is risk from flooding the site owner shall consult the Environment
Agency for advice on the likelihood of flooding, the depths and velocities that might
be expected, the availability of a warning service and on what appropriate measures
to take.

17. Requirement to Comply with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The site owner shall make available the latest version of the fire risk assessment carried
out under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 for inspection by residents and
when demanded, a copy of the risk assessment shall be made available to the local
authority.

18. Fire safety measures where the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 does not apply
(such as single unit sites and those sites solely occupied by family groups)

(i) The standards in this paragraph only apply if the site is not subject to the Regulatory
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

Page 22



The Standards | 11

Fire Points

(ii)

These shall be located so that no caravan or site building is more than 30 metres
from a fire point. Equipment provided at a fire point shall be housed in a weather-
proof structure, easily accessible and clearly and conspicuously marked “FIRE
POINT”.

Fire Fighting Equipment

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

Where water standpipes are provided:

(a) The water supply shall be of sufficient pressure to project a jet of water not less
than 5 metres from the nozzle.

(b) There shall be a reel that complies with the current British or European
Standard, with a hose not less than 35 metres long, having a means of
connection to a water standpipe (preferably a screw thread connection) with a
water supply of sufficient pressure and terminating in a small hand nozzle.

(c) Hoses shall be housed in a red box and marked “HOSE REEL”. Access to the fire
point shall not be obstructed or obscured.

Where hydrants are provided, hydrants shall conform to the current British or
European Standard.

Access to hydrants and other water supplies shall not be obstructed or obscured.

Where standpipes are not provided or the water pressure or flow is not sufficient,
each fire point shall be provided with water extinguishers
(2 x 9 litres) which comply with the current British or European Standard.

Fire Warning

(vii) A suitable means of raising the alarm in the event of a fire shall be provided at each

fire point.

Maintenance and Testing of Fire Fighting Equipment

(viii) All alarm and fire fighting equipment shall be installed, tested and maintained in

working order by persons who are qualified in the particular type of work being
undertaken and be available for inspection by, or on behalf of, the licensing authority
or the Fire and Rescue Service.

Page 23



12 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

(ix) A record shall be kept of all testing and remedial action taken.

(x)  All equipment susceptible to damage by frost shall be suitably protected.

Fire Notices

(xi) A clearly written and conspicuous notice shall be provided and maintained at each
fire point to indicate the action to be taken in case of fire. This notice should include
the following:

“On discovering a fire:
I. Ensure the caravan or site building involved is evacuated.
Il. Raise the alarm.

4

lll. Call the fire brigade (the nearest phone is sited at ........ ).

Page 24



Annex | 13

Annex to Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England:
Explanatory Notes

Contents

Paragraphs
Preface 1-4
Legal background 5-11
Introduction 12-20
The Boundaries and Plan of the Site 21-25
Density, Spacing and Parking between caravans 26-34
Roads, Gateways and overhead cables 35-40
Footpaths and pavements 41
Lighting 42
Bases 43-47
Maintenance of Common Areas, including Grass, Vegetation and Trees 48-50
Supply & storage of Gas etc 51-55
Electrical Installations 56-61
Water Supply 62-65
Drainage and sanitation 66-71
Domestic Refuse Storage & Disposal 72-73
Communal Vehicular Parking 74-75
Communal Recreation Space 76-78
Notices & Information 79-81
Flooding 82-85
Fire Safety Measures 86-103

Page 25



14 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

Preface

1. These explanatory notes are designed to be read in conjunction with Model
Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England (“the Standards”) and are intended to
offer guidance on the application and enforcement of the standards for local
authorities.

2. The standards are a revision and modernisation of the 1989 standards,
incorporating a number of new requirements, particularly in relation to
maintenance of sites and flood protection measures, other standards have been
modified and the standard relating to telephones has been deleted. The standards
also take account of the effect of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

3. These standards do not apply to sites used exclusively for siting holiday or touring
caravans. However, the standards apply to holiday sites containing permanent
residential caravans (except those holiday sites where the only permanent residents
are the site owner and members of his family and/ or his employees who are
employed on the site and occupy the caravan pursuant to their contract of
employment). The standards should be applied with due regard to the particular
circumstance of the site to which they are intended to apply, including its physical
characteristics, size, density, layout, amenities and services. See also paragraph 3 of
the Standards document for further advice on the application of the standards.

4. In this document the term “site owner” is referred to throughout, as normally that
person would be the licence holder.

Legal background

5. The use of land as caravan sites is controlled by relevant planning legislation,
whereas the physical standards and layout, amenities and other standards are
controlled by a site licence issued under the Caravan Sites and Control of
Development Act 1960 (“the Act”). Section 5 of the Act enables local authorities to
set licence conditions.

6. Under the Act, most privately owned sites must be licensed by the local authority,
unless exempted under the Act!. A licence will be granted unless the applicant does
not have relevant planning permission to operate the site or has had a licence
revoked in the last three years.2

! Section 2 and Schedule 1 to the Act set out in which cirpﬁ@c@ az'Blicence is not required.
2 Section 3 (4) and (6).



10.

11.

Annex | 15

The local authority may attach conditions to the licence, but these can only relate to
the physical use of the site and its management3. The Secretary of State may issue
Model Standards which the local authority must have regard to in deciding what
conditions to attach to a licence®. The authority may from time to time alter a site
licence condition (either of its own volition or upon the application of the licence
holder)>.

A licence holder may appeal against the imposition of a condition in a licence or any
proposed alteration to a condition or a refusal to alter a condition®.

It is an offence to breach a licence condition and on summary conviction the
offender can currently be fined up to £2,5007. Where a condition requires works to
the site to be carried out and these are not done either within the time specified or
to satisfaction of the local authority, the authority may carry out the works itself
and recover from the licence holder any expenses it has reasonably incurred in
doing so?.

The local authority may apply to the court to have a licence revoked if the licence
holder has been convicted on two or more occasions of breaches of licence
conditions®.

The local authority is required, under Section 25 of the Act, to maintain an accurate
register of the site licences in their area. Given the number of different types of
sites that local authorities may deal with, it is recommended that the register shows
what type of site each is, be it holiday, residential, mixed use or gypsy and traveller.
It is recommended as a minimum the information the site register has is:

e Name and address of site (if available the Geographic Information Service
mapping code should also be logged)

e Name of the licence holder, the site owner (if different) and any person
managing the site on behalf of either of those persons

e Type of site
e The number of pitches

e The licence conditions (if any)

3 Section 5 (1) to (5). For restriction see Mixnam’s Properties v Chertsey UDC A.C. 735.

4 Section 5 (6).

5 Section 8.

6 Sections 7 and 8 (2).

77 Section 9 (1). The maximum penalty on summary conviction is a fine not exceeding level 4 on the standard scale.

8 Section 9 (3). Page 27

9 Section 9 (2).



16 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

MODEL STANDARDS — EXPLANATORY NOTES

Introduction

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England have been made under
powers conferred on the Secretary of State under section 5(6) of the Caravan Sites
& Control of Development Act 1960 (the Act). A local authority must have regard to
the standards when it imposes conditions in a site licence.

The standards do not apply to sites used solely for caravan holiday homes (although
they do apply to mixed residential/ holiday sites), touring caravans or to sites
occupied by gypsies and travellers or agricultural workers. The standards as laid out
represent what would normally be expected as a matter of good practice on such
sites. They should be applied with due regard to the particular circumstances of
each case, including the physical character of the site, any facilities or services that
may already be available within convenient reach and other local conditions.

The local authority must apply the Model Standards with regard to the particular
characteristics of the site to which they are intended to apply, and in particular its
existing layout and size. It is recognised that not all sites will easily be able to meet
the Model Standards in every case due to their particular characteristics, but a local
authority will need to be able to justify any decision not to have regard to a
standard in setting a licence condition.

The standards are not intended to be the “ideal”; local authorities may in the
circumstances set more demanding ones if that can be justified.

There will be some licence conditions which require inter and cross agency input
and advice from other teams within the local authority and outside organisations,
such as the Health and Safety Executive, the local Fire and Rescue Service and the
Environment Agency. It is important for all parties concerned with sites that
effective lines of communication are established to ensure that any problems are
identified and resolved as early as possible.

Disability Discrimination legislation applies to sites and this should be borne in mind
when framing licence conditions and considering possible enforcement action.
Guidance can be found at www.dwp.gov.uk and this can also help local authorities
in their consideration of licence conditions. Further guidance can also be found on
the Equality and Rights Commission website at www.equalityhumanrights.com .

Page 28



Annex | 17

Enforcement

18.

19.

20.

Any decision to enforce a licence condition should be taken in line with the
Compliance Code (ISBN: 978-0-85605-712-0) which came into force in April 2008,
for which comprehensive guidance is available on the Department for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform website, www.bre.berr.gov.uk .

Local authorities should allow a reasonable period of time after any site licence
alteration for compliance with the revised conditions, unless the reason for making
the alteration was to address a matter requiring immediate attention.

When considering taking enforcement action local authorities should undertake a
risk assessment to take into account all possible factors in relation to the
prosecution.

The Boundaries and Plan of the Site

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The boundary should clearly define the limit of the site owner’s responsibility. The
boundary should be suitably marked and properly maintained. This boundary could
be formed of a fence, hedge, wall or natural feature or any other suitable structure
(or any combination of these) or it may in whole, or part, be formed by an
appropriate natural feature, such as a river or a wood. It would not normally be
appropriate for that natural feature to simply include an open field.

Plans of the site shall be provided to the local authority at the site owners’ expense.

It is best practice for copies of the plan to be made available to the emergency
services.

The 3 metre separation distance inside the boundary serves the purpose of ensuring
privacy from whatever is on the other side of the boundary, such as a road, and
other developments, such as houses etc.

The 3 metre separation distance measurement should be taken from the caravan
wall.

Page 29



18 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

Density, Spacing and Parking Between Caravans
26. The 6 metre separation distance is required for two reasons:

* Health and safety considerations; and

e Privacy from neighbouring caravans.

27. A diagram explaining the separation distances is attached below.

CAF Ral,

FIGLIRE 1
DIV S IO £ VTN IFILIY SEP AR STION DT MCES

Mie — The minimum disianos boenaeon he sl should rat b= more than 1 meaire less tan the rminimom ssgan ton detknes

dwirad v ll auris-mi

Page 30



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Annex | 19

If a caravan has been fitted with cladding from class 1 fire rated materials, then the
distance between units may be reduced. However, there is a need for the privacy of
residents to be taken into consideration. Health and safety matters, such as the
positioning of gas bottles, etc. will also need to be taken into account.

For the purposes of calculating the distance between the caravans, the point from
which measurements are taken is the exterior cladding of the relevant caravan.
Eaves, drainpipes, gutters, sills, threshold, door canopies and bay windows should
be discounted.

Porches should not render the home incapable of being moved, which means they
should be demountable.

If structures, other than garages, are on pitches within the separation distance and
are of a combustible construction, then the local authority should consider allowing
sufficient time for them to be replaced with an acceptable non combustible model.

At no time should a garage constructed of combustible material be allowed in the
separation distance.

Enforcement

33.

34.

In considering the enforcement of the separation distance the local authority
should consult with the local Fire and Rescue Service. It should also seek the views
and take account of representations from the site owner and affected residents
before taking any steps to enforce this standard, where practicable.

Before the local authority undertakes any enforcement action it should consider the
benefit of the works against the potential impact on the residents’ enjoyment of
their homes and the cost to the site owner.

Roads Gateways and Overhead Cables

35.

Roads should be constructed of bitumen macadam or concrete with suitable
compacted base. However, sites with roads constructed of tarmacadam (which is
now obsolete and no longer commercially available) should not be required to
automatically upgrade their roads. The roads should only be required to be
upgraded as and when they begin to fall into disrepair.

Page 31



20 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Some larger sites may have traffic calming measures such as speed humps on their
roads. Though not specifically covered in this standard, it will be worth ensuring
that any legal requirements applying to un-adopted roads are met. Guidance and
assistance can be found on the Department for Transport website, www.dft.gov.uk .

Gateways, roads and turnings should have enough clearance to allow safe entry for
emergency vehicles and new units on lorries. The widths and heights given are
based on the maximum sizes of emergency vehicles that may regularly attend
incidents on sites.

In determining the permitted height of cable overhangs the local authority must
take into account the current statutory requirements. Those applying as at the date
of this guidance are found in the Electricity Safety Quality and Continuity
Regulations 2002 SI 2002/2665 (ESQCR). These regulations provide that, in general,
cables should not overhang a road at a height of less than 5.8 metres. In the case of
fully insulated overhead conductors the ground clearance is 3.8 metres. There are a
number of exceptions where:

e The overhead line follows a route along a hedgerow, fences, boundary walls or
similar features. The minimum clearance in these circumstances is 4 metres.

e |f it crosses a driveway with an access width of no more than 2.5 metres (and the
driveway is defined by gateposts or similar features), the minimum clearance is
4.3 metres.

Further advice on minimum clearances is available from the Health and Safety
Executive.

It is good practice that all overhead lines on sites should be fully insulated and
where a cable is in within easy reach of a property; it must be so and protected
from interference.

The authority should require the site owner to comply with regulation 3 of the
ESQCR and in considering any enforcement action in relation to cables must consult
with the HSE.

Footpaths and Pavements

41.

Communal path widths should normally be 0.9 metres in respect of new sites or
sites that are undergoing substantial redevelopment (including expansion to part of
the site); otherwise paths of not less than 0.75 metres should be accepted where
they already exist.

Page 32



Annex | 21

Lighting

42,

The lighting provided for communal paths and roads should be adequate to allow
safe movement around the site during the hours of darkness. Many sites use low
lighters rather than traditional street lamps and these work well as long as they are
well maintained and plants/vegetation are not allowed to grow around them and
stop them emitting light effectively. The lighting must be fit for purpose i.e. to allow
vehicles and pedestrians to navigate around the site between dusk and dawn.

Bases

43,

44,

It is important to note that the construction, maintenance and repair of the
concrete base are the responsibility of the site owner. New bases should be laid as a
minimum in accordance with the current industry guidelines issued by the National
Park Homes Council and the British Holiday and Home Parks Association. The
Industry’s current standard for the bases provides:

“A hard core base to a minimum depth of 150 mm, well consolidated and topped
with 100 mm of concrete (mix as BS8500-2:2006'°) shall be used. The finished raft
must be generally level with due allowance for surface drainage. Where the ground
conditions so require, thickening or the introduction of reinforcement of the raft may
be necessary.”

Particular attention should be paid to the terrain of the site before a base is laid,
which may mean a thicker base is needed. The base should be sufficient to handle
the load placed upon it by the caravan and its contents.

Enforcement

45,

46.

47.

When considering any enforcement action, the authority should also seek the views
and take account of representations from the site owner and affected residents
before taking any steps to enforce this standard, where practicable.

Before the local authority undertakes any enforcement action it should consider the
benefit of the works against the potential impact on the residents’ enjoyment of
their homes and the cost to the site owner.

Where a caravan has to be removed in order to facilitate works to the base the
authority should normally, if it is feasible and if it is the resident’s wish, require the
site owner to reinstate, at his own expense, the caravan on the original pitch on
completion of the works.

, , . Page 3
10 Copies of the Standard can be obtained from the British Standard$ Institute.



22 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

Maintenance of Common Areas, including Grass, Vegetation and
Trees

48.

49.

50.

Cut grass and vegetation should be removed from the site as soon as practicable.
Bonfires should not be used as a means of disposal. Vegetation is often used for
sight screening but should be kept at a reasonable height.

Trees on the site will normally be the responsibility of the site owner. Where trees are
in need of care and maintenance the local authority should, before any action is
taken, liaise with the officer responsible for trees at the authority to ensure that all
statutory and other requirements are complied with.

The common parts of the site (including roads, paths and pavements) must be kept
free of any rubbish and maintained in a clean and tidy condition. The local authority
may wish to consider whether appropriate receptacles for litter need to be
provided in such areas. In any case the site owner should be required to make
arrangement for the regular collection of routine rubbish from the site. He should
also be required to make arrangements for the prompt disposal of waste and other
materials which accumulate on the site during any works etc. Secure non
combustible facilities should be provided on the site for the proper storage of
rubbish and waste prior to its removal and disposal off the site.

Supply and Storage of Gas etc

51.

52.

The HSE website, www.hse.gov.uk, provides details and information about the
various legislative requirements and contacts if further information is needed. In
addition the trade body for LPG suppliers, uklpg, www.lpga.co.uk, also has
information which may be of use.

Anyone being employed by a site owner to carry out work on gas (including natural
gas) or oil installations should be suitably qualified to do the work. The HSE pages
contain details of some of the schemes. The Communities and Local Government
website contains details of various certification schemes which may apply. The
details of these schemes can be found at www.communities.gov.uk .

Enforcement

53.

In considering whether to take enforcement action for a breach of site licence
conditions officers should liaise with the Health and Safety Executive to ensure any
action taken by the authority is not in conflict with any action the HSE are proposing
to take.

Page 34



54.

55.

Annex | 23

Local authority officials who identify areas of concern on sites should always consult
the HSE about the problem(s).

All new installations must be to the current regulations and maintained at that
standard.

Electrical Installations

56.

57.

58.

59.

The electrical installations on the site will be a distributor’s network either
belonging to the local regional electricity network operator or the owner of the site.
The HSE website: www.hse.gov.uk contains information on the electricity legislation
which may well apply to the site and can provide further information if needed.

A suitably qualified person for the purpose of carrying out work on electrical
installations and appliances, including maintenance and inspections, includes a
professionally qualified electrical engineer, a member of the Electrical Contractors
Association, a contractor approved by the National Inspection Council for Electrical
Installations Contracting, or a qualified person acting on behalf of the above.

It may be necessary to ensure the electricity distribution network complies with
ESQCR, in which case such work should only be undertaken by a competent person
familiar with those Regulations.

All new installations must meet the requirements of the current regulations and
maintained at that standard.

Enforcement

60.

61.

In considering whether to take enforcement action for a breach of site licence
conditions, officers should liaise with the Health and Safety Executive to ensure any
action taken by the authority is not in conflict with any action the HSE are proposing
to take.

Local authority officials who identify significant areas of concern with site electrical
networks and installations should always consult the HSE about the problem(s).

Page 35



24 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

Water Supply

62.

OFWAT lay down service standards for the water suppliers and details can be found
on their website at www.ofwat.gov.uk . In addition there are various schemes for
suitably qualified persons and authorities should check to see those undertaking
works are qualified. The main scheme is run by NIC certification and details can be
found about the scheme at www.niccertification.com .

Enforcement

63.

64.

65.

With the majority of well established sites, enforcement of this section will need to

be carefully handled, as most sites will have long established water systems. As with
gas and electricity above, there may be a case for dual enforcement if an offence is

identified. Consultation with the Environment Agency and the local water company

is essential.

As with the previous sections, local authority officers who identify an issue with
water supply on a particular site may wish to advise the Environment Agency, and
the local water company of the problem.

All new installations must be to the current regulations and maintained at the
appropriate standard.

Drainage and Sanitation

66.  As with water supplies, provision of sewerage facilities is overseen by OFWAT and
codes of practice are in place.

67. Itisimportant that all drains and sewers are well maintained and are connected to
the appropriate system. If left unchecked, there can be consequences for the health
of residents, along with those who live near the site.

68. It should be noted that the environmental quality of drainage is regulated by the
Environment Agency, with whom the local authority must consult about any
problems.

Enforcement

69. In considering whether to take enforcement action for a breach of site licence

conditions officers should liaise with the Environment Agency to ensure any action
taken by the authority is not in conflict with any action the Agency are proposing to
take.

Page 36



70.

71.

Annex | 25
Local authority officials who identify areas of concern on sites should alert the
Environment Agency and the local water company to the possible defects.

All new installations must be to the current regulations and maintained at that
standard.

Domestic Refuse Storage and Disposal

72.

73.

If communal bins are provided they should be of a type that is non-combustible and
stored properly. Liaison with colleagues who deal with refuse collection matters will
help in ensuring that the bins provided by the site owner (in the case of communal
bins) are acceptable to the local authority in pursuance of its collection of rubbish
from them.

The site owner should be required to discuss with the local authority arrangements
for the separation of waste for the purpose of recycling it, and require him to
provide the necessary receptacles etc on the site.

Communal Vehicular Parking

74.

75.

Parking needs will vary considerably between individual parks. Parking
requirements should reflect the reasonable needs of the residents, having regard to
the size and layout of the site, the number of units, the occupation criteria of the
site and the availability of public transport in the immediate vicinity.

Provision of parking spaces on new sites or those undergoing redevelopment or
extension should be consistent with local planning policies.

Communal Recreation Space

76.

77.

This standard should only be applied if the local authority is satisfied that it is both
practicable to provide recreation space on the site and there is insufficient
recreation space off the site in the near locality.

It will only be practicable to provide such space on the site if there is sufficient open
space which is available and it is possible to safely use that space for recreation. The
standard requires the local authority to consider the need for recreation space; it
does not require it to consider the need for recreation facilities, although the local
authority may consider that need as part of a licence condition. The larger the site
the more recreation space or spaces may

Page 37



26 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

78.

be needed. On small sites there may be no need for space at all. In deciding
whether it is practicable to provide the space the authority should also consider the
site layout, the availability of private open spaces (e.g. within the pitch), the
availability of other amenities on the site (e.g. club houses) and the age and number
of residents on the site.

On site recreation space may be considered unnecessary if there is sufficient
suitable space available off site within close (walking) distance of it. The space must,
however, be freely accessible by the public, such as a municipal park, commons
land, and greens or any part of the countryside to which the public have a right to
walk.

Notices and Information

79.

80.

81.

It is important that all notices are protected from the weather and are prominently
displayed, either on a board, in an office open to the public, or other places on the
site which the residents have free and reasonable access to.

The notices must include the most recent site licence, and the contact details of the
site manager, and if different the licence holder. This should include an out of hours
contact number for emergencies, and if available an e-mail address.

The site owner is also required to make available certain information for inspection
by residents in a prominent position on the site. That could be the site office
provided it is open at reasonable times, a community room which every resident
was entitled to use and which is also open at reasonable sites or a notice board
located at the entrance to or in a central part of the site.

Flooding

82.

It is important that if a site is in an area susceptible to flooding, procedures are in
place to ensure that all those on the site are alerted quickly, and that they are
aware of any evacuation procedures that may be in place. A notice should be
prominently displayed with all relevant information.

Page 38



Annex | 27

83. The site should be included in any local authority flood evacuation plan.

84. Advice on flood risks is available from the Environment Agency website:
www.environment-agency.gov.uk

85. Itisimportantin those parts of the country where flooding is an issue that local
authorities have effective liaison with the Environment Agency office for their area,
as well as relevant officials across their own local authority. Local water companies
should also be contacted.

Fire Safety Measures

86. The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (the Order) applies to caravan sites.
The Order disapplies some fire related standards that may be in current site
licensing conditions. It applies to all non domestic premises in England and Wales,
including certain types of caravan sites:

e all sites with common or shared parts; and
¢ individual caravans which are holiday-let type i.e. they are rented out

87.  On such sites the local authority should advise the ‘responsible person’, who will be
the licence holder of his duty under that Order to undertake a fire risk assessment
and decide what prevention and protection arrangements are appropriate and
adequate to mitigate the identified risks.

88. However, there are some sites around the country which do not fall under the
Order. These may include single unit sites and those sites which are occupied by
single family groups.

89. Where the Order applies the authority should satisfy itself that the site owner is
aware of, and complying with, his obligations under it, in particular that a fire risk
assessment has been carried out. In this regard the local authority should seek the
advice of the local Fire and Rescue Service who are the main enforcers of the Order.

90. The Communities and Local Government website:
www.communities.gov.uk contains a range of helpful information on fire safety and
the requirements of the Fire Safety Order. This includes links to technical guides for
specific types of accommodation, including one for sleeping accommodation.

Page 39



28 Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Site in England

91.

92.

The Fire and Rescue Service has a duty to provide fire safety advice to those who
ask for it, although it will not carry out risk assessments.

In applying any standards relating to fire safety measures where the Order does not
apply, the local authority must consult the local Fire and Rescue Service.

Fire Fighting Equipment

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

The Guidance under the remaining sections only applies to sites to which the Order
does not apply; however these standards will provide a useful benchmark of the
sort of preventative and protective measures that may be necessary following
completion of a fire risk assessment.

The siting of the fire points should be so that they are visible at all times, and
marked in a way that makes it obvious as to what they are. They will need to be
kept clear of any obstructions at all times should they be needed in the event that a
fire breaks out.

Fire Points are the places on sites where fire fighting equipment is stored, ready for
use by anyone in the event of an emergency.

If hosepipes are provided, they should be of the relevant British and European
Standards!?, and positioned in such a way that they are easily attachable to the
mains water supply, if not permanently attached. Any valves connecting the hose to
the water supply should be easily accessible. The hose reel should be well
maintained and in good working order.

Any hydrants provided on the site should be kept clear of any obstruction in the
event that they need to be used. The positioning of mains connected hydrants is the
responsibility of the local water company, and any queries as to whether a site has a
hydrant should be directed to them. The positioning of the hydrants should be
recorded on the site map, which will assist the emergency service in locating them
in the event of an emergency.

Fire Extinguishers should only be used if there is not enough water pressure for a
hose reel. Where provided, extinguishers should comply with the current British or
European Standard.

e 40

11 Details of relevant British Standards can be found at www.coMmunities.gov.uk



Annex | 29

99. A water tank with buckets and a pump should not be the main means of fighting fire
for the following reasons:

e Pumps and buckets are likely to be vandalised or stolen.
e Pumps and buckets are inadequate for fighting a fire.

e A water storage tank should be securely covered to prevent it becoming a health
or safety hazard.

Fire Warning

100. The means of raising the alarm in the event of a fire should be appropriate to the
size and layout of the site. If you are unsure of which form of raising the alarm is the
most suitable to the site, then contact the local Fire and Rescue Service, who will be
able to advise you.

Maintenance and Testing of Fire Fighting Equipment

101. Itis important that all fire warning systems and fire fighting equipment are regularly
inspected and maintained. The suggestion is that these checks should be carried out
on an annual basis. All testing and maintenance should be carried out by a person
suitably qualified to do the work. Records should be kept of any testing and when
the most recent inspections were carried out. The record of all tests and inspections
should be kept on the site for inspection.

Fire Notices

102. The fire action notice should be displayed on a notice board, and at other suitable
points around the site. The full address of the site, including the postcode should be
included.

Enforcement

103. The main enforcer for the Order is the Fire and Rescue Service.

Page 41



ISBN: 978 1 8511 29102
Page 42



Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

Condition 2000 Licence Conditions Proposed 2018 Licence Conditions

5 A plan of the site shall be supplied to the A plan of the site shall be supplied to the
Local Authority upon the application for a Local Authority upon the application for a
licence, and thereafter whenever there is a licence, and thereafter whenever there is a
material change to the boundaries or layout | material change to the boundaries or layout
of the site, or at any other time on the of the site, or at any other time on the
demand of the Local Authority. The cost demand of the Local Authority. The cost
shall be met by the licence holder. The plan | shall be met by the licence holder. The plan
shall include the usable area of the site (as | shall include the usable area of the site (as
defined in condition 8) and shall show the defined in condition 8) and shall show the
position of: position of:

a) All caravans including their enclosure a) All caravans including their enclosure
Boundaries and all garages, sheds, Boundaries and all garages, sheds,
covered stores, car ports covered covered stores, car ports covered
walkways and car parking spaces walkways and car parking spaces
associated with them. associated with them.

b) All site building and permanent b) All site building and permanent
structures. structures.

c) All roads paths and their associated c) All roads paths and their associated
lighting. lighting.

d) Allfire points and hydrants. d) All fire points and hydrants.

e) All public telephones. . e) All electrical distribution points.

f) All electrical distribution points. f) All compounds for the storage of

9) AII compounds for the storage of liquefied petroleum gas.
liquefied _petroleu_m 9as. g) All cesspits, septic tanks and

h) All cesspits, septic tanks and . .
connections to the public sewer connections to the public sewer
system. system. _ _

i) All drainage runs and inspection h) All drainage runs and inspection
chamber. chambers.

j) All communal refuse stores. i) All communal refuse stores.

9 Every caravan shall stand on a concrete Every caravan shall stand on a concrete
hard standing which shall extend over the hard standing which shall extend over the
whole area of the caravan placed upon it whole area occupied by the caravan placed
and project not less than 1 metre outwards upon it. The base must extend over the
from the entrance or entrances to the whole area occupied by the unit, and must
caravan. project a sufficient distance outwards from

its entrance or entrances to enable
occupants to enter and leave safely. The
hard standing must be constructed to the
industry guidance, current at the time of
siting, considering local conditions.

10 All roads and footpaths shall be designed so | All roads and footpaths shall be designed so

as to allow adequate access for fire
appliances and other emergency vehicles.

as to allow adequate access for emergency
vehicles. In particular, all roads shall be not

Page 43




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

All roads shall be not less than 3.7 metres
wide with a height clearance not less than
4.5 metres. Gateways should be no less
than 3.1 metres wide. Roads shall allow for
vehicles with a turning circle of 17 metres
diameter and a sweep circle of 25 metres
diameter.

less than 3.7 metres wide with a height
clearance of not less than 4.5 metres.
Gateways should be not less than 3.1
metres wide.

12 Every caravan standing or toilet block shall Every caravan shall be connected to a road
be not more than 50 metres from a road and | by a footpath with a hard surface which shall
shall be joined to the road by a footpath not | be maintained in a good condition. Where
less than 0.75 metres wide. practicable communal footpaths and

pavements shall not be less than 0.9 metres
wide

18 Where there is a water supply of sufficient Where there is a water supply of sufficient
pressure and flow to give a jet of a least 5 pressure and flow to give a jet of at least 5
metres at 30 litres per minute from the hose | metres from the hose nozzle, each fire point
nozzle, each fire point shall include a shall include a permanently connected
permanently connected hydraulic hose reel | hydraulic hose reel that complies with
that complies with the appropriate sections current British or European standards with a
of British Standards 5274 and British hose not less than 35 metres long, having a
Standard 5306 Part 1. Hoses shall be not means of connection to a water stand pipe
less than 30 metres long terminating in a (preferably a screw thread connection) with
hand control nozzle and shall be housed in | a water supply of sufficient pressure and
boxes painted red and marked “HOSE terminating in a small hand nozzle and shall
REEL”. be housed in a box painted red a marked

“‘HOSE REEL".

20 Where there is a water supply of sufficient Where hydrants are provided, hydrants shall
pressure and flow, fire hydrants shall be conform to current British or European
installed within 30 metres of every caravan | standard.
standing. Hydrants shall comply with British
Standard 750 and be properly installed,
protected and indicated.

Provided that the Director may, at his
absolute discretion, relax this requirement
where there is an alternative accessible
reliable water supply suitable for
replenishment of fire fighting appliances.

21 A means of raising the alarm in the event of | A suitable means of raising the alarm in the
fire shall be provided at each fire point by event of a fire shall be provided at each fire
way of manually operated rotating bells, point.
other manually operated sounders or an
electrically operated alarm bell or siren. The
alarm sounders should be loud enough to
be heard clearly inside all caravans within a
30-metre radius.

22 All alarm and firefighting equipment shall be | All alarm and firefighting equipment shall be

maintained in working order at all times and

installed, tested and maintained in working

Page 44




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

shall be inspected and tested not less than
once annually by a competent person. A log
book shall be kept on the site to record all
tests and remedial action and shall be
available for inspection by the licensing
authority at any time. The costs of the
inspections shall be met by the licence
holder.

order by persons who are qualified in the
particular type of work being undertaken and
be available for inspection by, or on behalf
of, the Licensing Authority or the Fire
Service. A record shall be kept of all testing
and remedial action taken. The costs of the
inspections shall be met by the licence
holder.

23 All equipment susceptible to damage by All equipment susceptible to damage by
frost shall be suitably protected. All water frost shall be suitably protected.
extinguishers should contain anti-freeze as
recommended by the manufactures.

24 A clearly written and conspicuous notice A clearly written and conspicuous notice
shall be provided and maintained at each shall be provided and maintained at each
fire point to indicate the action to be taken in | fire point to indicate the action to be taken in
case of a fire and the location of the nearest | case of a fire. This notice should include the
telephone, this notice should include the following:
following: “On discovering a fire:

“On discovering a fire: a) Ensure the caravan or site building
a) Ensure the caravan or site building involved is evacuated.
involved is evacuated. b) Raise the alarm
b) Raise the alarm c) Call the Fire Brigade.
c) Call the Fire Brigade ( the nearest
telephone is
sited......coooiiii )
d) Attack the fire using the firefighting
equipment provided, if it is safe to
do so.
In the interests of all the occupiers of this
site to be familiar with the above routine and
the method of operating the fire alarm and
firefighting equipment.

25 Long grass and vegetation shall be cut at Long grass and vegetation shall be cut at
frequent and regular intervals where frequent and regular intervals where
necessary to prevent it from becoming a fire | necessary to prevent it from becoming a fire
hazard to caravans, buildings or other hazard to caravans, buildings or other
installations on the site. Any such cuttings installations on the site. Any such cuttings
shall be removed from the site as soon as shall be removed from the site as soon as
practicable. practicable. Trees within the site shall

(subject to the necessary consents) be
maintained. Any cuttings, litter or waste shall
be removed from the immediate
surroundings of a pitch.

29 LPG storage supplied from tanks shall LPG storage and installations should meet

comply with Guidance Book HSG 34 “The
Storage of LPG at fixed installations” or
where LPG is supplied from cylinders with

all current legislative guidance as specified
by the HSE (Health and Safety Executive).

Page 45




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

Guidance Note CS4 “The Keeping of LPG in
Cylinders and Similar Containers” as
appropriated.

Where there are metered supplies from
common LPG tank storage, then Guidance
Note CS11 “The Storage and Us of LPG at
Metered Estates” provides further guidance.
Exposed gas bottles or cylinders shall not
be within the separation boundary of an
adjoining unit.

LPG installations shall conform to British
Standard 5482, “Code of Practice for
domestic butane and propane gas burning
installations, Part 2: 1977 Installations in
Caravan and non-permanent dwellings.

For mains gas supply, 1984 Regulations
shall be complied with for the installation
downstream of any service pipe(s) supplying
any primary meter(s) and such service pipes
shall comply with Gas Safety Regulations
1972.

Exposed gas bottles and cylinders shall not
be within the separation boundary of an
adjoining unit. Mains gas supply should
comply with all current legislative
requirements as specified by the HSE.

30 The site shall be provided with an electricity | The site shall be provided with an electricity
supply sufficient in all respects to meet all supply sufficient in all respects to meet all
reasonable demands of the caravans reasonable demands of the caravans
situated on it. situated on it and shall comply with all

current legislative requirements.

31 Any electrical installations, which are not A suitably qualified person for the purpose
Electricity supplier works and circuits subject | of carrying out work on electrical
to regulations made by the Secretary of installations and appliances, including
State under section 16 of the Energy Act maintenance and inspections, includes a
1983 and section 64 of the Electricity Act professionally qualified engineer, a member
1947, shall be installed , tested and of the Electrical Contractors Association, a
maintained in accordance with the contractor approved by the National
provisions of the Institute of Electrical Inspection Council, for Electrical
Engineers (IEE) Regulations for Electrical Installations Contacting, or a qualified
installations for the time of being in force person acting on behalf of the above.
and where appropriate, to the standard
which would be acceptable for the purpose
of Electrical Supply Regulations 1988,

Statuary Instrument 1988 No1057.
32 The electrical installation shall be inspected | The electrical installation shall be inspected

within 3 months of issue of the site licence
and thereafter not less than once every 12
months (in the case of underground
installations 3 years) or such longer periods
as may be recommended by a person who
should be one of the following:

within 3 months of the issue of the site
licence and thereafter not less than once in
every 12 months (in the case of
underground installations 3 years), or such
periods as recommended by a suitable
qualified person.

Page 46




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

A professionally qualified electrical engineer.

A member of the electrical contractors
association.

A member of the electrical contractors
association of Scotland.

A certificate holder of the Nation Inspection
Council for Electrical Contracting, or

A qualified person acting on behalf of one of
these (in which case it should be stated for
whom he is acting) Such person shall within
one month of such an inspection issue an
inspection certificate in the form prescribed
in the IEE Wiring regulations, which shall be
retained by the site operator and displayed
with the site licence. The cost of the
inspection and report shall be met by the
site operator and a copy of the report shall
be submitted to the Director.

Such person shall within one month of such
an inspection issue an inspection certificate
in the form prescribed in the IEE Wiring
regulations, which shall be retained by the
site operator and displayed with the site
licence. The cost of the inspection and
report shall be met by the site operator and
a copy of the report shall be submitted to the
Director.

33 If an inspection reveals that an installation 33. If an inspection reveals that an
no longer complies with the regulations installation no longer complies with the
extant at the time it was first installed, any regulations extant at the time it was first
deficiencies shall be rectified. Any major installed, any deficiencies shall be rectified.
alterations and extensions to an installation | Any major alterations and extensions to an
and all parts of the existing installation installation and all parts of the existing
affected by them shall comply with the latest | installation affected by them shall comply
version of the IEE Wiring regulations. with the latest version of the IEE Wiring
regulations.
All new installations must meet the
requirements of the current regulations and
maintained at that standard.
35 The site shall be provided with an adequate | 35.  The site shall be provided with an
water supply in accordance appropriate adequate water supply. OFWAT lay down
Water Bylaws and statutory quality service standards for the water suppliers
standards. and details can be found on their website at
www.ofwat.gov.uk. All new installations
must be to current regulations and
maintained at the appropriate standard.
37 Satisfactory provision shall be made for foul | 37.  Surface water drainage shall be

drainage, either by connection to the public
sewer or sewage treatment works or by
discharge to a properly constructed septic
tank or cesspool approved by the Local
Authority. Each caravan standing shall be

provided where appropriate to avoid
standing pools of water. There shall be
satisfactory provision for foul and waste
water drainage either by connection to a
public sewer or sewage treatment works or

Page 47




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

provided with a connection to the foul
drainage system; the connection shall be
capable of being made air tight.

by discharge to a properly constructed
septic tank or cesspool approved by the
local authority.

38 The site and every hard standing shall be 38. All drainage and sanitation provisions
provided with an adequate drainage system | shall be in accordance with all current
for the complete and hygienic disposal of legislation and British or European
foul, rain and surface water from the site, standards.
buildings, road and footpaths.

39 Every new caravan brought onto the site 39.  Work on drains and sewers shall be
shall be provided with its own water internal | carried out only by persons who are
closet, bath or shower, wash-hand basin qualified in the particular type of work being
and sink. Every water closet shall be undertaken and in accordance with current
provided with a piped cold water supply and | legislation and British or European
every bath or shower, wash-hand basin and | standards.
sink shall be provided with pied hot and cold
water supplies. All amenities shall be
connected to the foul drainage system.

40 Every caravan standing shall have an 40. Every caravan standing shall have an
adequate number of suitable non- adequate number of suitable refuse bins
combustible refuse bins with close fitting with close fitting lids. Arrangements shall be
lids. Arrangements shall be made for the made for the bins to be emptied on a regular
bins to be emptied on a regularly weekly basis.
basis.

44 Where children reside on the site, space 44. On sites where it is practical to do so,
equivalent to about one-tenth of total area suitable space equivalent to about one tenth
shall be allocated for children’s games of the total area of the site shall be allocated
and/or recreational purposes. for recreational purposes, unless in the local

authority’s opinion there are adequate
recreational facilities within a close proximity
to the site.

45 A suitable sign shall be displayed 45.  The name of the site shall be
prominently at the site entrance indicating displayed on a sign in a prominent position
the name of the site and the name, address | at the entrance to the site with the current
and telephone number of the site manager. | name, address and telephone number of the

licence holder and manager and emergency
contact details, a copy of the site licence or
the front page of the said licence and details
of where the full licence and other
information required to be available under
this standard can be viewed and between
which times (if not displayed on the notice
board).

46 A copy of the site licence with its conditions | 46. A current plan of the site with roads

shall be displayed prominently on the site.

and pitches marked on it shall be
prominently displayed at the entrances to it.

Page 48




Appendix 4

e — |

Table 1 comparison of current conditions and proposed conditions.

47 Notices and a plan shall be displayed on the | In addition, at the prominent place the
site setting out the action to be taken in the | following information shall also be available
event of an emergency. They shall show for inspection at the prominent place:
where the police, fire brigade, ambulance a) A copy of the most periodic electrical
and local doctors can be contacted, and the inspection report.
location of the nearest public telephone. The b) A copy of the site owners certificate
notices shall also give the name and of Public Liability Insurance.
location/telephone number of the site c) A copy of the local flood warning
licence holder or his/hers accredited system and evacuation procedures, if
representative. appropriate.
d) A copy of the fire risk assessment
made for the site.
e) All notices shall be suitably protected
from the weather and direct sunlight.
50 No caravan intended for residential No caravan intended for residential

purposes shall be brought onto the site
unless it complies with British Standard
3632.

purposes shall be brought onto the site
unless it complies with current British or
European standards.

Page 49




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item No: 5

Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item No: 6

Document is Restricted

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem No: 7

Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Review of the Licence Conditions for Oxley Court Mobile Home Caravan Site
	Appendix 1 for Oxley Court Caravan Site
	Appendix 2 for Oxley Court Caravan Site
	Appendix 3 for Oxley Court Caravan Site
	Appendix 4 for Oxley Court Caravan Site

	5 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Drivers Licence (AR)
	Appendix 1 for Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Drivers Licence (AR)

	6 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (AH)
	Appendix 1 for Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (AH)

	7 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (SL)
	Appendix 1 for Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence (SL)


